MEREDITH SELECT BOARD
MEETING AGENDA
Meredith Community Center - 1 Circle Drive
July 14, 2025 at 4:30pm

CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
AGENDA ITEM 1. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES - page 1

AGENDA ITEM 2. WORKSHOPS — page 8
A. Community Development Department Reorganization (Manager Milner) — page 8
B. Discuss Keno Opt Out Warrant Article (Manager Milner) — page 81
C. Tax Deeded Property Discussion (Manager Milner) — page 83

AGENDA ITEM 3. BUSINESS — page 86
A. Private Road Name (Admin Asst Maltais) — page 86
B. Old Home Days Approval (Manager Milner) — page 94

AGENDA ITEM 4. TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT — page 117
AGENDA ITEM 5. VISITOR AND RESIDENT COMMENTS — page 120

AGENDA ITEM 6. SELECT BOARD REPORTS AND COMMENTS - page 121
ADJOURNMENT

Next meeting: July 28, 2025



Agenda Item 1

Town of Meredith, New Hampshire
Selectboard Agenda Report
For the Meeting of July 14, 2025

From: Kerri Parker, Recording Clerk

Subject: Selectboard to consider approving meeting minutes

Suggested Motion:

Selectboard member moves, “I move that the Selectboard approve the minutes of the
June 23, 2025 Selectboard meeting.”.

Selectboard Chair calls for a second, discussion and vote.
Attachments/Exhibits:

Applicable public minutes

Page 1 of 121


townmanager
Text Box
Agenda Item 1


N O Ot A WN -

AwwwwwwwwwwmmwwmmwmmM—\-—\—\—\—\—‘—\—\—\—\
O(Om\ICDO'I-b-OON-—‘O(OOO\IO)W-&OJM—‘O(OOD\]O’(D-&OON—‘OLO

MEREDITH SELECT BOARD MEETING MINUTES June 23, 2025

Chairperson Mike Pelczar called the meeting to order at 4:30pm Members present
Selectperson Jeanie Forrester, Selectperson Lynn Leighton, Vice Chairperson Steve
Aiken, Chairperson Mike Pelczar, Town Manager, Judie Milner, Recording Clerk
Kerri Parker. Selectperson Jim Gregoire absent with notice.

Selectperson Lynn Leighton led the pledge of allegiance

Selectperson Lynn Leighton motioned to approve the minutes from the June 9,2025,
Selectboard meeting seconded by Vice Chairperson Steve Aiken, minutes approved.

WORKSHOPS

VHB Presentation on Majn Street

Chuck Gregory gave the overview of the main street plan which would develop
necessary infrastructure improvements along the Main Street corridor to support
economic vitality by improving the safety and accessibility for all users of Main
Street. There is documented pedestrian crashes including a fatality as well as
pedestrian facilities that do not meet ADA guidelines. F urthermore, the community
has noted high vehicular speeds during off-peak times. Two Traffic Pattern
Alternatives were presented, Alternative #1: Convert Main Street to One-Way
Traffic as well as Alternative #2: Maintain Two-Way Traffic on Main Street.. They
looked at both options and recommend maintaining the two way traffic with the
following improvements:

Two-way traffic with double-yellow center line Additional signing for pedestrian
crossings (recommended in RSA)

Bump outs (curb extensions) @ Lake St, High St, Dover St, Water St, Highland St,
& Plymouth St

Provide ADA-compliant sidewalks, wheelchair ramps, and crosswalks

Remove parking spaces adjacent to crosswalks

Reconfigure Waukewan St / Main St intersection

Construction Cost Estimate $3,800,000

Other Considerations to be considered would be raised crosswalks/intersections
water and sanitary sewer upgrades undergrounding of aerial facilities potential
parking study, with a net loss of 12 spaces, and with a parking inventory in hand, the
Town may elect to perform a parking study to evaluate the true impact of the loss of
these parking spaces. The next steps would be to confirm water and sanitary
condition and replacement needs, complete the utility feasibility study, confirm
scope and timeline for Preliminary Design. The need for parking study, the
limitations, with full or phased approach, water and sewer improvements and the

Page 2 of 121



41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80

additional ~ elements  to  consider  (streetlighting, RRFB, raised
crosswalks/intersections).

Selectperson Jeannie Forrester asked if there are any state or federal restrictions that
would impact the plan, Chuck Gregory stated that he didn’t feel that there would be.
She further asked if the DPW Director, and Water and Sewer superintendent have a
copy to review. Judie Milner explained that they do have the plan and are reviewing
them. Chief Mike Harper stated that some plan is needed just for the safety aspect
as he witnesses many near mishaps on a weekly if not daily basis. Bonnie Edwards
asked if there was any possibility of taking the post office away from Main Street or
possibly restricting the larger type of vehicles. Judie Milner questioned how the
phased approach could work. Chuck Gregory explained that it could be done in
sections to minimize the impact on the traffic. Bob Manley asked if they have
considered one way traffic on Dover or Lake streets to minimize how the traffic is
entering Main Street.

Hesky Park Discussion

Town Manager Judie Milner spoke about the former Chowder fest and asked about
bringing it back again. She stated that she could not find anything in the deeds that
prohibit the use of town property to for profit entities. Chairperson Mike Pelczar and
the other members of the board felt that continuing to restrict Town Property to Non-
profits would be the best practice.

PUBLIC HEARINGS

NHEC Easement

Chairperson Mike Pelczar opened the public hearing at 5 :22pm pursuant to RSA
41:14-a relating to the granting of an easement to New Hampshire Electric Coop.
Judie Milner stated that this is the second of the required hearing, with the next
hearing to be heard and voted on June 30™ 2025 meeting, there was no public
comment. Chairperson Mike Pelczar closed the pubic hearing at 5:24pm.

BUSINESS

Police Portable Radios

Chief Harper explained the current radios date back to 2012 and were officially
discontinued last year. As a result, they are no longer serviceable. We have already
had to retire two portable radios that stopped working, which leaves us with Just
enough units to meet daily operational needs, thanks only to current staffing levels.
The purchase of ten new radios—together with one unit purchased last year and one
already budgeted for this year—will provide us with a total of twelve new units. This

Page 3 of 121



81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93

94
95

96
97

98
99

100
101

102
103

104

105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114

will ensure that we remain fully functional and prepared to meet communication
demands. The current 2025 general fund budget; $40,113.20 in funding is requested
from the Police Detail Revolving Fund passed through 2023 warrant article 7.
Motorola has announced a price increase for these units effective June 28% 2025
which could be upwards of $1,000 per unit. Moving forward with this purchase now
will help us avoid that significant additional cost.

Appointment to Village Pathway Committee

Selectperson Lynn Leighton motioned that the Meredith Selectboard appoint Robert
Knoll as a regular member to the Village Pathways Committee, seconded by Vice
Chairperson Steve Aiken, all in favor.

TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT

Judie Milner shared her appreciation for the Town Departments on a job well done
during Bike Week 2025.

Intern Aidan Blake — graduated with honors LRCC with Associates Degree in
Applied Fire Science

Firefighter Barber - received certificates of completion for 16 hours of peer support
training, IAF Trained Peer Supporter and 2 hours Behavioral Health Awareness

Marybeth King, Christopher Leland and Cherie Gable — Library team members
attended Know & Tell training

Superintendent Jason Bordeau & the Water Dept Team — Leak detection report
shows water loss of 1.5 GPM; 2 years ago 150 GPM — great work team!!!!

Planner Labreque and Stephanie Maltais — attended the Spring Planner’s conference

Fire Awards:
Years of Service:
40 years: Deputy Haines and Firefighter Joseph Duschka
25 Years: Firefighter Ludwick
20 Years: Lt. Haines
10 Years: Firefighter Barber

MFD FIREFIGHTER OF THE YEAR - J. Cullen

MFD OFFICER OF THE YEAR - Lt. Haines
Certificates of Appreciation:

Page 4 of 121



115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154

DEPUTY CHIEF KLOETZ
DEPUTY CHIEF HAINES
CHIEF ENG. HANK DENISON
CAPTAIN PARKER
CAPTAIN CURRIER

LT. HAINES

LT. LATULIPPE

LT. LANDRY

LT. TAGGETT
CHAPLAIN DAIGNEAU
COOKIE BOULANGER
FF FRENCH

FF ENGINEER LUDWICK
FF ENGINEER LAFAVRE

Welcome Aboard:
Trevor Hunnicutt, Firefighter
Jared Wyatt, Call Firefighter

The City of Laconia is having a Planning Board meeting on July 1% at 6 PM at City
Hall concerning the old state school property which we are an abutter to.

She updated the board on the State budget and how it may affect the town and if the
Town wanted to take a position and reach out to the State legislators.

VISITOR AND RESIDENT COMMENTS

Amy Beliveau, the owner of the Meredith Inn is in support of the Main Street project
as they have witnessed the issues first hand but cautioned taking away too many of
the parking spots.

SELECT BOARD REPORTS AND COMMENTS
Selectperson Jeannie Forrester thanked the departments for their work during Bike
Week

Selectperson Lynn Leighton also thanked the departments for their work during Bike
week and also recognized the group that organizes the POW run each year Especially
Doc Jones and was very disappointed about the cancelation this year for safety
reasons. She reminded all about the Street Dance Friday the 27% of June

Page 5 of 121



155

166 Vice Chairperson Steve Aiken reminded everyone about the upcoming planning
157  board meeting.

158

159 Chairperson Mike Pelczar adjourned the meeting at 5:55 pm

160  Next meeting: July 14, 2025

161

162

Page 6 of 121



—
SO0~ UL WN—

S T R S G UL (U U Y
SO0 QAN DW=

MEREDITH SELECT BOARD MEETING Minutes June 30, 2025

Meeting called to order at 4:50pm with the following members present: Selectperson Lynn Leighton,
Vice Chairperson Steve Aiken, Chairperson Mike Pelczar, Town Manager Judie Milner, Recording Clerk
Kerri Parker, Selectperson Jim Gregoire and Selectperson Jeanie Forrester absent with notice.
Chairperson Mike Pelczar led the Pledge.

Manager Judie Milner gave a short summary of the request to grant an easement to NH Electric
Cooperative for underground utilities serving a property at 91 Plymouth Street. The required public
hearings were held on Monday, June 9th, 2025, and Monday, June 23rd, 2025, where any interested
members of the public were able to attend and comment. There was no public comment.

Selectperson Lynn Leighton moved to grant NH Electric Cooperative an easement across a portion of Tax
Map UIO, Lot 27A to place underground electric to serve the building at 91 Plymouth Street", seconded
by Vice Chairperson Steve Aiken, all in favor. approved.

Meeting adjourned at 4:56pm

Next meeting: July 14, 2025

Page 7 of 121



Agenda Item 2A

Town of Meredith, New Hampshire
Selectboard Agenda Report
For the Meeting of July 14, 2025

From: Judie Milner, Town Manager
Subject: Board to consider reorganization of the community development
department

Suggested Motion:

No Motion — Workshop Only

Background/Discussion:

See attached PowerPoint presentation.
Attachments/Exhibits:

PowerPoint presentation

Community Development assessment & related docs
2023 Meredith Pay & Classification Study

Page 8 of 121


townmanager
Text Box
Agenda Item 2A


7/10/2025

' Town of Meredith

Community
Development
Reorganization

1
° o ®
Meredith Comm Dev Reorganization -
v Town of Meredith Community Development Department Assessment prepared by Jay
Minkarah Feb 2023
v" Meredith Wage & Classification Study prepared by Municipal Resources Inc May 2023
v" TM Action Plan Summary prepared by Town Manager October 2023 & supporting docs
v' Community Development Reorg & Duties prepared by Angela Labreque 2025
v' Town of Meredith Selectboard nonpublic meeting April 2025
v Input from the City of Rochester, Meradith’s Community Development Team, Director
Carpenter, HR Generalist Chris Janosa
v/ With thanks to the many communities who responded to our recent informal community
development wage survey
2

Page 9 of 121



7/10/2025

I Meredith Community Development -
What Does That Mean Anyway?

Recommend name change:

Planning and Development Department

I Meredith Planning & Development -
Human Capital

Today: Recommended:
Town Planner (Gr 17) Director (Gr 22)
Code Enforcement (Gr 16) Senior Planner (Gr 17)
Administrative Assistant (Gr 10) Code Enforcement (Gr 16)
Office Clerk — FT (Gr 4) Planner | (Gr 12)
Office Clerk — PT (Gr PTS-14) Office Clerk — FT (Gr 4)

Page 10 of 121



7/10/2025

I Meredith Planning & Development Reorg
- Benefits

Most Important Categories:

Direct Department Oversight
Maintain Standards

Professional Leadership

Economic Development

Complex Projects/Funding Strategies

AN NI NI N

Meredith Planning & Development
Reorg - Cost

2025 Budget 2026 Budget*
Costs can be absorbed in the Annualized difference in
current budget due to open expenditures over 2025 budget =
positions throughout the year $109,983
Assumes September 1 live date - However

4 months of expenditures in the
current budget

Page 11 of 121



7/10/2025

v

Meredith Planning & Development Reorg
— Net Cost

Recent Fee changes - the lion’s share generated by this
department - offset the cost:

Annual Projected Cost $109,983
Increased Revenues:
STR Fees (net) $ (62,000)
Inspection Fees $ (20,000)
Net Annual Cost $ 27,983

¥

Meredith Planning & Development Reorg
— Tax Impact

Based on 2024 Tax Rate:
Tax Rate Impact = $.0072

Annual Tax per $100,000 in assessed value = $.72

Annual Tax bill impact for $484,470 average non
waterfront single family home in Meredith = $3.49

Page 12 of 121



7/10/2025

v

Questions?

Page 13 of 121



Town of Meredith
Community Development Department Assessment

Prepared by
Jay Minkarah

February 2023

Page 14 of 121




Town of Meredith
Community Development Department Assessment

This audit of the Town of Meredith Community Development Department was conducted
between November 2022 and February 2023 at the request of the Town through its Town
Manager and Board of Selectmen. The scope of the audit encompassed a thorough assessment
of the department based on statutory requirements and best practices with a focus on user
experience, general operations, regulatory compliance, and fairness of process. Specific
components of the assessment are outlined below.

1. Background Review
a. Review of the written documents for consistency with statutory requirements, best
practices, and general background on department functions including:
e Written department and related board, committee and commission policies
and procedures.
¢ Application forms for all relevant permits and approvals.
e Fee schedules.
® Subdivision, Site Plan, and other related regulations for consistency with
statutory requirements and best practices.
* Review of other applicable ordinances and regulations.
Review the website for ease of access, clarity, and user experience.
c. Review a sample of Planning Board, Zoning Board Conservation Commission and
other relevant committee minutes selected randomly over the past year.
d. Review video recordings of select meetings.

2. Site Visit

A site visit to experience the public face of the department and evaluate its overall

operations was conducted on November 30, 2022. The site visit included:

a. Observation of the interaction between town staff and the pubic (the front counter
experience).

b. Observation of where or how application forms and regulatory materials are made
available to the public.

c. Observation of the interaction of department staff with each other.

d. Observation of the interaction between staff and the public.

e. Interviews with each department employee to gain insight into departmental
operations including identifying actual or functional responsibility for key
components of the process, identifying the “chain of custody” for applications and
the ways in which communications are carried out between staff, applicants, board
members and the public.

Page 15 of 121



3. Confidential off-site Interviews included:
a. Experienced applicants for Planning and Zoning Board approvals and building
permits.
b. Planning Board, Zoning Board and Selectboard members.
€. Other municipal staff.

Department Overview

The Meredith Community Development Department is located in a free-standing building at 5
Highland Street to the rear of Town Hall. The Department is responsible for administering
planning & zoning regulations, staffing Planning Board and Zoning Board of Adjustment (ZBA),
issuing building permits and conducting related inspections, and code enforcement along with
street naming, 911 addressing and providing support to various other town committees. The
Conservation Commission maintains an office in the building but is not staffed by the
Department.

Gas & Oil permits originate in Community Development, but inspections are conducted by the
Fire Chief. Since Community Development staff have no oversight or control over the Fire
Department, issuing the permits and scheduling inspections is a source of friction and
frustration within department. No fees are currently charged.

The Department is staffed by five positions: the Community Development Director, Town
Planner, a building inspector who is also the Code Enforcement Officer, Zoning Administrator
and Health Officer, an Administrative Assistant and an Office Clerk. Each of these positions is
described in greater detail below. The Department uses a third-party consulting firm for
engineering review (a common practice) and third-party GIS services.

The front office includes a front counter with a display of application forms and two
workstations, one for the Office Clerk and one for the Administrative Assistant. Directly behind
the front office is the Building Inspector’s office which is within earshot of the front counter.
The balance of the first floor consists of a mix of meeting space, file storage and a staff break
area. The layout of these multi-purpose spaces is somewhat inefficient, but nevertheless,
appears to function reasonably well.

The filing system is a combined, color-coded system based on tax map parcel number that
includes planning, zoning, and building files. This is a recommended practice.

Overall, the front office appears to work reasonably well and to be adequately staffed.
Application materials are accessible, and the Office Clerk and Administrative Assistant appear
able to manage inquiries at the counter as well as phone calls and other demands. During the
site visit, three interactions at the front counter were witnessed: one with an individual seeking
an inspection and two encounters with a person opening a new business. In addition, incoming
phone calls from the public were overheard. In my observation, front office staff were friendly,
responsive, and able to address each person’s needs successfully.

Page 16 of 121



Website

The Town’s website is an impressive resource for a community of Meredith’s size. Information
on the purpose and mission of the Community Development Department and the Boards it
staffs are provided together with links to a variety of planning related information and
materials. Applicable ordinances and regulations, application forms, and required fees are
readily accessible and contact information for key staff is provided. Helpfully, agendas, agenda
packages, minutes, and video recordings of board meetings are also posted on the website. The
website provides superior public access to information related to town government generally
and to key boards, committees and commissions.

Department Staff

1. Community Development Director

The Community Development Director has been with the Department for 34 years. Not
surprisingly, his institutional knowledge is substantial and his contributions to the town appear
to be recognized. The Director’s workstation is a private office located on the second floor. In
addition to managing the Department generally, he works with Capital Improvements Program
(CIP) Committee and the Watershed Advisory Committee as well as the Greater Meredith
Program, a local community development organization. He does weigh-in on certain
development proposals though he does not directly staff the Planning Board or the ZBA. Having
a Community Development Director who does not also function as a town planner is unusual in
a community of Meredith’s size.

2. Town Planner

The Town Planner’s workstation is also located in a private office the second floor. The Planner
administers the Town’s planning regulations, meets with applicants, and assists them in
preparing complete applications, reviews application submittals, and staffs the Planning Board.
She also works with Bicycle/Pedestrian Committee and Energy Committee. She does not review
building permits but does sign-off on Certificates of Occupancy (COs). Should the Master Plan
update process proceed, the Town Planner would also be responsible for leading the effort.

It is worth noting that many towns require that the town planner review and sign-off on
building permit applications for new construction, especially for commercial development, to
ensure that site plan and subdivision requirements are adhered to prior to construction,

A review of the video recordings of various Planning Board meetings over the course of 2022
demonstrates that the Town Planner is an active and important participant in Planning Board
meetings. She appears familiar with the details of the projects under review, knowledgeable of
the regulations and applicable laws and conducts herself professionally. The Town Planner
works closely with the Administrative Assistant who is in effect, a planning assistant. A review

Page 17 of 121



of current and historic Planning Board application activity suggests that the workload for the
Town Planner position and Administrative Assistant is substantial but manageable.

3. Administrative Assistant

The Administrative Assistant is the initial point of contact for most Planning Board applicants.
She takes in applications and conducts an initial review to make sure required materials are
provided. If necessary, the Town Planner is called in to assist.

Planning Board applications are due 21 days before date of hearing. The agenda cut-off is
typically on a Monday and applicants are informed by Friday if they made the agenda. The draft
agenda is sent out the Friday after the Monday cut-off (17 days before the Planning Board
meeting). The Administrative Assistant prepares the agendas, agenda packages, abutter notices
and newspaper notices and attends Board meetings. Friday before the Planning Board meeting,
agenda packets are ready for pick-up by board members. The Administrative Assistant also
provides back-up support for the Office Clerk. Data related to Department Applications is
entered into the MuniSmart system. Staff relates that the system is cumbersome to use and has
experienced operational problems resulting in a lack of access and loss of data. A new software
system is anticipated.

The Community Development Department holds a standing meeting to review applications on
the Tuesday after agenda cut-off. The Fire, Public Works, and Water & Sewer departments are
invited along with the Conservation Commission and Police Department if needed. Reviewing
applications with other relevant town staff in advance of posting the agenda and sending out
notices is important to help identify key issues and potential deficiencies and avoid surprises
further along in the process.

4. Office Clerk

The Office Clerk takes in Building Permit and other related applications at the counter and
conducts a preliminary review of building permit applications using a checklist. She answers
basic application related questions and calls in the Building Inspector as needed. Completed
permit applications are placed in the Building Inspector’s in-box. The Building Inspector sets the
fees. Turnaround time for review of an application is typically one to three days. The Office
Clerk schedules inspections for the Building Inspector as well as for oil/gas permits. Both she
and the Administrative Assistant answer phone calls, assist people at the counter and provide
back-up support for each other. This arrangement appears to work well,

5. Building Inspector

The actual title of the Building Inspector is Code Enforcement Officer, Zoning Administrator and
Health Officer. The Building Inspector reviews all building related permit applications and
conducts necessary inspections. As Health Officer, he also issues permits septic systems though
he does not license or inspect food service establishments. As Zoning Administrator, he staffs
the Zoning Board and as Code Enforcement Officer, he is responsible for enforcing the Zoning

5

Page 18 of 121



Ordinance and Planning Board regulations. The number of permits issued by the Department is
substantial and appears to have remained fairly constant over the past few years. ZBA
applications are also relatively numerous.

Overall, the Department’s practices and procedures in administering the building permit
process appears to work well. The prior Building Inspector (the position is currently vacant) was
generally well regarded in his building related role. Zoning administration and code
enforcement, however, are a source of concern both within and outside of the Department.

Subdivision and Site Plan Regulations

The Town’s Subdivision Review and Site Plan Regulations are typical of those adopted by many
New Hampshire Towns, however there are numerous inconsistencies and updates that need to
be addressed. These include important updates to the regulations necessary to reflect changes
in procedural requirements that became effective on July 1, 2022 as a result of the passage of
HB 1661. Examples of inconsistencies include the requirement in the Subdivision Regulations
that applications be submitted 15 days before the date of the hearing where as the Site Plan
Review Regulations and internal policies require 21 days. In addition, several statutory
references, various citations and definitions need to be updated and the fees referenced in the
regulations also need to be reviewed and reorganized. Further, it would be helpful if both sets
of regulations followed a consistent format and structure.

Staff Challenges and Concerns

The challenges of taking in and scheduling oil/gas permits without having any control over the
inspections was cited as a source of frustration by multiple Department staff members. Though
this would appear to be a relatively minor issue, it is clearly an irritant that should be
addressed.

Staff also cited frictions with the ZBA as a concern. These were mainly due to the ZBA’s use of
its own legal counsel and exclusion of staff from nonpublic sessions regarding legal issues. Staff
feels “out of the loop” which in turn, hinders their ability to effectively support the Board.
Challenges in enforcing planning regulations and Zoning Ordinance requirements is also source
of frustration for both staff and members of the ZBA. Addressing noise complaints and issues
related to Airbnb’s were specifically cited.

In addition, staff is aware that a Master Plan update is long overdue (the current plan was
completed in 2002) but funding for an outside consultant has not vet been approved.

External Issues and Concerns

As noted under staff concerns, the lack of enforcement of planning and zoning regulations has
been cited as a concern from people outside of the Department as well as from staff and there
is a sense that certain complaints are ignored and that enforcement is inconsistent. Concern
that enforcement or administration of Watershed District requirements has been reported.

6

Page 19 of 121



Lack of progress in updating the Master Plan is also a source of frustration. Multiple individuals
interviewed questioned whether a fulltime Community Development Director is needed. The
suggestion that the Department is “top heavy” was made by a few people interviewed for this
assessment.

The most pressing concern is a perception that in certain cases, applicants for Planning Board or
building permit approvals are treated differently based on who they are or whether staff views
their applications favorably. One individual gave the example of a downtown development
liked by staff being given favorable treatment whereas staff appeared to be less willing to assist
an applicant for a project in an outlying area. A lack of responsiveness from staff was also cited
along with in some cases, conflicts which may have been personal in nature. Complaints that
staff could at times be unhelpful or unresponsive were also cited. It is not possible to verify
whether individual applicants are treated unequally or unfairly based on who they are or the
nature of the project proposals. However, given that multiple individuals have made similar
complaints, it is clearly an issue that needs to be addressed.

Conclusions
1. Overall

Overall, the Community Development Department’s internal practices and procedures in
administering the planning process and staffing the Planning Board appear to function well and
are generally consistent with statutory requirements and best practices. Importantly, the
Planning Board appears satisfied with the support that they receive. Management of the
building permit process also appears to function well, though as noted above, involving
planning staff in reviewing building permit applications could be beneficial in helping to avoid
potential planning related violations before construction.

Planning and zoning related code enforcement is always a challenge, especially when
complaints are related to activities occurring outside of normal working hours. It is also
challenging because in Meredith, as is true in most towns, enforcement is typically one of many
duties that fall under the responsibility of the designated code enforcement officer, and it is
rare that the enforcement officer has adequate education, training, and experience in these
areas. Further, it is clear that the working relationship between staff and the ZBA needs to be
improved.

2. Staffing

The Meredith Community Development Department has the right number of positions, but the
job functions of certain positions need to be reevaluated. The Department is too small to have a
director who is not actively engaged in administering its core functions, particularly at a time
when certain departmental functions are not being addressed adequately. The current
Community Development Director has played a valuable role in Meredith for many years and is
generally well regarded. As previously noted, however, it is unusual for a town of Meredith’s

Page 20 of 121



size to have a fulltime community development director who does not actively staff one or
more boards or play an active role in project reviews. Further, although the director does
perform important tasks, the position does not appear to be fully programmed.

On the other hand, given the level of development and planning related activity in Meredith,
the Town Planner appears to have a full plate. With the support of the Administrative Assistant
and the benefit of the well-designed systems in place, the Town Planner can effectively
administer the planning process and provide staff support for the Planning Board. Without the
services of a consulting firm or regional planning commission, however, it would be very
challenging for the Planner to lead the Master Plan update process while fulfilling her other
principal duties. The Master Plan update is more than 15 years overdue and needs to be
addressed. Since funding for a consultant has not been approved for 2023, the update process
will need to proceed using other department staff and probably volunteers from the
community if at all.

Administrative Assistant & Office Clerk: The front office appears to be appropriately staffed
through these two positions. Each position has a distinct role, but they are also mutually
supportive.

Code Enforcement Officer/Zoning Administrator/Health Officer/(Building Inspector): These are
too many titles for one employee. Having a building inspector function as the code
enforcement officer is common, however, zoning administration is usually not within the
education, training, or experience of most building inspectors. It is also not common to have a
Building Inspector serve as staff to the Zoning Board. One or more of these duties should be
shifted to other staff. This could improve code enforcement overall and improve staff support
for the ZBA.

3. OtherIssues

As discussed above, the ZBA has independent legal representation. Staff is excluded from
nonpublic discussions with ZBA counsel and staff feels out of the loop. This is a source of
mistrust and friction that impedes the ability of staff to properly support the Board. This
practice is also problematic more generally since issues that require consultation with legal
counsel can relate to litigation to which the town would be a party and it is the town as a whole
that bears the cost. The ZBA is not an independent entity; it is a board of the Town and as such,
should not be represented by a separate legal firm over which the Town Manager and Board of
Selectmen have no input, oversight, or control.

Addressing complaints regarding unequal or unfair treatment is especially challenging since it is
not an issue of staff levels or procedures, but rather, an issue of office culture, individual
personality and sense of duty. Since concerns related to this issue seem to run deep, it is
important that a statement in some form be made that equitable treatment for all applicants is
a priority of the Town of Meredith and that this be communicated to the Community
Development Director and Department staff through the Town Manager and/or Board of

8

Page 21 of 121



Selectmen. It may also be worthwhile to have the Town Manager serve as an ombudsman for
complaints related to the Department on an interim basis. This would send a signal to the
community that the complaints received are taken seriously and may help to mitigate certain
issues before they escalate. Finally, consideration should be given to reviewing and possibly
amending ordinances related to issues that seem to be the subject of a disproportionate
number of complains such as Short-Term Rentals, the Lake Waukewan Watershed Overlay
District and the Architectural Design Review Ordinance.

Recommendations

1. By whatever title, the Community Development Department needs two professional
planning/zoning positions to adequately meet current demands. In the long-term, the
Town should consider eliminating the Community Development Director position,
keeping the Town Planner position, and potentially adding an assistant planner position.
In the short term, a redistribution of key department functions would be prudent. There
is no one way that tasks should be distributed between staff members, but since the
Town Planner appears to have a full workload, the following is recommended:

® The Community Development Director should assume the role of Zoning
Administrator. This would include staffing the ZBA and responsibility for zoning
enforcement.

® The Community Development Director should assume responsibility for enforcing
Planning Board site plan and subdivision regulations.

¢ The Community Development Director should be tasked with initiating the Master
Plan update process. Though it is recognized that funding will be necessary for at
least some level of outside support, the Department can initiate the public input
process through developing a survey, conducting stakeholder input sessions and
charrettes, and compiling available data. Consideration should also be given to
pursuing grant funding to support the Master Plan update effort.

2. The Town should discontinue the practice of maintaining independent legal counsel for
the ZBA. Furthermore, it is important that town staff are included in any discussions
between board members and legal counsel since these discussions inevitably impact
zoning administration and enforcement as well as staff support for the Board.

3. The Town should consider hiring a part-time inspector specifically for gas/oil permits
and adopt a fee ($50 would be consistent with other similar permits) to off-set the cost.
Though moving the entire process out of Community Development and over to the Fire
Department is an option, the Fire Department currently lacks the capacity to handle
scheduling the inspections.

Page 22 of 121



4. The Town should consider having the Town Manager serve as an ombudsman for
complaints related to the Community Development Department on an interim basis.

5. The Community Development Department should conduct a thorough review of current
Nonresidential Site Plan Review and Land Subdivision Regulations together with any
related policies, guidelines, procures and application forms to ensure compliance with
current statutory requirements, to update statutory and other references, and eliminate
inconsistencies.

6. The Town should review and consider amending certain Zoning Ordinance provisions
that are the subject of a disproportionate number of complaints related to unequal
treatment of applicants or insufficient enforcement.

10

Page 23 of 121



About the Author

This assessment was conducted by Jay Minkarah at the request of the Town through its Town
Manager. Mr. Minkarah has over thirty years of planning and economic development
experience in New England including providing staff support to planning and zoning boards in
seven New Hampshire towns. He currently serves as Executive Director of the Nashua Regional
Planning Commission. Prior to coming to the Nashua Regional Planning Commission in 2017, he
served as President & CEO of DevelopSpringfield, a nonprofit development corporation in
Springfield, MA and as Economic Development Director for the cities of Manchester and
Nashua. In these roles, he had the opportunity to lead several significant development projects
through local municipal permitting and approval processes. He also served as director of the
Town of Merrimack Community Development Department from 1994 to 2004. Jay has a
Bachelor of Urban Planning from the University of Cincinnati and a Juris Doctor from the
University of New Hampshire Franklin Pierce School of Law. He is an inactive member of the
New Hampshire Bar Association and currently serves on the Nashua Zoning Board of
Adjustment,

11

Page 24 of 121



TOWN MANAGER ACTION PLAN SUMMARY
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT ASSESSMENT REPORT 2023
‘ Presented to Select Board October 16, 2023
Presented to Select Board October 30,2023

RECOMMENDATION #1 — Establish Two Professional Planning / Zoning Positions

1. Community Development Director Position

a. Position to remain vacant indefinitely

b. Town Manager to serve as Community Development Director with direct supervision
over Community Development staff

2. Town Planner
/ a. Added management and supervision responsibilities by overseeing everyday

administration of department staff by assigning staff assignments, workload and priorities

b. Recommend department priorities, policies and procedures to Town Manager and insure
they are being implemented and followed

c. Assists Town Manager with annual performance review and other personnel issues

d. Primary staff resource for Planning Board, CIP, Energy Committee and Village Pathways

e. Assigned to pay grade 17 (876,065 to $99,177)

3. Assistant Town Planner / Zoning Administrator

a. New full time salaried position

b. Attends meetings and acts as primary staff resource for ZBA, Waukewan Watershed
Advisory Committee and Conservation Commission

¢. Atftends Planning Board, Select Board and other meetings as required

d. Assists Town Planner, department staff, department heads and public with technical
planning assistance

e. Assists Planner with review of subdivision and site plan applications and conducts annual
inspections of approved plans for compliance with conditions and approvals.

f. Investigates land use regulations or code violation complaints and initiates enforcement

proceedings by contacting property owners, preparing letters, working with legal staff

and aftending court proceedings

Prepares/assists grant applications for infrastructure, water quality, fransportation, etc.

Approves Zoning Board of Adjustment agenda, prepares staff report and presents cases at

ZBA meetings

1. Administers E911 addressing program

J- Updates department webpage

k. Position requires bachelor’s degree in planning or community development with 3 to 5
years of experience or any equivalent combination of education, training or experience

1. Assigned to Grade 14 (362,462 to $86,049)

B

! / RECOMMENDATION #2 — Discontinue Practice of Independent ZBA Legal Counsel

' 1. Assign Mitchell Municipal Group as general counsel
2. Assign Drummond Woodsum as special counsel as required due to conflict of interests
3. Discontinue practice of excluding staff from discussions with ZBA and legal counsel
4. ZBA supported this change on May 11. 2023

- RECOMMENDATION #3 — Hire Part-Time Fire Inspector and Establish Permit Fees

1. Position was previously authorized but postponed due to COVID
2. Town Manager authorized recruitment in August 2023

Page 25 of 121



3. Interview process is completed, and new inspector should be in place in November 2023

4. Permit fees to be discussed with Fire Chief and new inspector. Fees should be in place by
January 1, 2024

RECOMMENDATION #4 — Town Manager Serve as Ombudsman

1. Town Manager has been performing this role since May 2023 when Mr. Edgar retired
2. Department goal is to treat all customers equally

3. Future customer feedback forms to be developed before 2024

\/ RECOMMENDATION #5 — Review of Non-residential Site Plan and Subdivision Regulations
1. Assistant Planner / Zoning Administrator to be assigned with this task

RECOMMENDATION #6 — Review Zoning Ordinances to Address Complaints and Enforcement

1. Assistant Planner / Zoning Administrator to be assigned with this task

Page 26 of 121



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

PLANNER 1

® Oversees the department

® Works on Master Plan implementation

® Approves the Planning Board agendas, writes
staff reports

® Meets with applicants before, during and
after projects

e Respond and meet with development
potential inquiries

® Ensures compliance with Planning Board
approvals.

¢ Conducts specialized research for
departments/road/other legal matters.

e Update and amend land use Regulations and
zoning amendments

e Staffs volunteer committees

PLANNER 2

Approves the Zoning Board agendas, writes
staff reports

Meets with applicants before, during and
after projects

Respond and meet with development
potential inquiries

Ensures compliance with Zoning Board
approvals.

Assists with zoning ordinance amendments
Staffs volunteer committees

Administer the E911 addressing program
Assists with long range planning goals
Updates Community Development Webpage
Coordinates 91A Requests for Information.

e Performs building inspections

® Monitors construction activities
matters

e Serves as health officer

CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICER

* Reviews and issues building permit applications
® Acts to ensure compliance with codes and plans

e Participates in review and compliance with Planners on land use board

¢ Executes enforcement matters, responds to request for investigations

COMMUNITY DEV. ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT

e Takes and directs phone calls

¢ Answers general inquiries, calls and front
desk customers

* Takes in applications and fees at the counter

e Helps fulfill Requests for Information

e Schedules appointments and meetings

e Attends Planning Board meetings, prepares
required notifications, agendas, and minutes

e Posts notices for volunteer committee
meetings and minutes

* Enters permitting data and runs reports

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CLERK

Takes and directs phone calls

Answers general inquiries, calls and front
desk customers

Takes in applications and fees at the counter
Schedules appointments and meetings
Attends Zoning Board meetings, prepares
required notifications, agendas, and minutes.
Enters permitting data

Files and assists other in the department as
needed.

Page 27 of 121




REPORT

TOWN OF MEREDITH, NEW HAMPSHIRE

WAGE AND CLASSIFICATION STUDY

MAY 2023

Prepared by:
Municipal Resources, Inc.
66 Main Street, Suite B
Plymouth, NH 03264
603-279-0352
866-501-0352 Toll Free
all@mrigov.com
www.mrigov.com

Page 28 of 121



TABLE OF CONTENTS

i

Municipal

Resources, Inc.



TABLE OF CONTENTS

REPORT
INEFOAUCHION ..o
Classification and COMPENStion................ovuuveimeeeeeeeeseeeeeoeeeoooeoooooooooo
SEUTY PrOCESS ...ttt e
EXECULIVE SUMMAIY...c.oiiiiiiieceet e
SCOPL ..ttt ettt e ettt
Classification and ComMPeNSation...............oueveeeeevevvesesosoeeoeeooooeoooeosoen
TRE Plan .o
Maintenance/UPdate ............ccomimiieeieeeeceeeeeeee oo
Fire Call POSITIONS ...
BONETIES oo
PrOJECT REPOIT ..o,
Details of the Methodology ...........ccvuecuiuieiieieeeeeeeeeeee oo
Classifying and Compensating POSItioNs................c.eveeeeomremrosooeoeoeooooeeooeoo
The Classification Plan ...........ocouioveueieceeeeeeeeeeeee oo
Market Survey and Developing the Compensation Plan.............ooovooeoon..
Description of Pay and Classification Plans ...............oooooovooooooo
BENETILS ..o
Implementation and Other RecOMMENations ...........o.oueeeveeeeeeeeooeoeoeoeooeoo
Initial Placements for Current EMployees .............ccocovevoeoooeeoooeeooooeoo

Page 30 of 121



Total Implementation COst .........c..evveuiveieoeoeeeee oo 10
Salaries ADOVE Pay RANGE ........c.couvuurvueriuemseeeeeeeeeesee oo 11
Salary COMPIESSION..............ccvureeeirineieeeceeeeeee oo 11
VACANCIES ...t oeeeoeoeeooe 11
Update and Maintain the Pay and Classification Plans ... 11
ReCIASSIFICAtIONS ..ov.ivooe e 12
Fire Department and Community Development Department....................... 12
Implementation of Pay Plan .............coovurveeooomoeeeeooeeoeoooooooo 13
Implementation of Classification Plan ................coocommvvommvvooo 13
COSt-0f-LIVING (COLA) oo oo 14
BENEFILS ... 14
CONCIUSTON ..ot 15
DISCIAIMEN .oooo e ooeeoeeeeoooo 16
APPENDICES
Market Data REPOIT .........ocoouuuiiiiiicceee oo oo A
Nonunion Classification Plan and DPW Union Classification Plan.......................____ B
Nonunion Pay Plan and DPW UNion Pay PIan ...................ceeerenvemnsosooroooooooooeoeoooooen C
Nonunion Benefit Summary and DPW Union Benefit.................cooommmovvooooooooooooo D

Page 31 of 121



REPORT

Municipal
Resources, Inc.

Page 32 of 121



REPORT
TOWN OF MEREDITH, NEW HAMPSHIRE
WAGE AND CLASSIFICATION STUDY

MAY 2023

INTRODUCTION

Scope of Services

The Town of Meredith, New Hampshire engaged Municipal Resources, Inc. (MRI) to develop an
updated Pay and Classification Plan based on comparative analysis of approximately 58 non-
union and union classifications to conduct a market salary and benefit analysis. This includes
both Town and Library positions as well as review of four classifications from the Fire Call
positions. This study was commissioned to re-examine the responsibilities, work performed,
and market pay rates for each position included in the study. In general, the study involved
reviewing job descriptions, classifying those positions to provide internal equity, surveying the
market of comparable municipalities to determine rates of compensation, and developing and
recommending a pay and classification plan. Benefits will also be reviewed with
recommendations for any modifications if warranted. A Classification and Compensation Study
is designed to focus on internal and external equity of both the structure by which employees
are compensated as well as the way positions relate and compare to one another across the
organization. This report focuses on the analysis and findings related to Meredith’s general
compensation for all positions, both non-union and union. As the economy continues to
improve and other organizations look to raise their wages, Meredith found it necessary to have
a compensation system developed to ensure that it is competitive in order to attract and retain
the necessary talent to provide services.

Internal equity relates to the fairness of an organization’s compensation practices among its
current employees. Specifically, by reviewing the skills, capabilities, and duties of each position,

Page 33 of 121



it can be determined whether similar positions are being compensated equitably and are
properly aligned within the Town’s organizational structure.

External equity deals with the differences between how an organization’s classifications are

valued and what compensation is available in the market place for the same skills, capabilities,
and duties.

CLASSIFICATION AND COMPENSATION

A pay and classification plan is an essential and vital component of a comprehensive human
resource administration system. The perception that the pay plan is objective and fair in its
assignment of pay to individual positions lends credibility to the Town’s entire human resource
system. The plan represents a systematic, formalized procedure for developing equitable job
groupings and equitable compensation levels for all positions. The plan is based upon the
underlying assumption that individuals should receive “equal pay for equal work.”

However, implementation of a pay and classification plan should not be viewed as the final step
in achieving job equity. The plan must be reviewed on a regular basis to ensure that decisions
regarding position requirements and compensation accurately reflect the Town’s current
service needs, while continuing to maintain the integrity and relevance of the plan.

MRI has reviewed the current job duties and compensation levels for the positions studied.
Recommendations have been made that involve the updating of classification and pay plans for
both non-union and the DPW union positions. Recommendations for placement of positions
within the updated pay plans are made along with any potential cost impact. Of course, any
union position modifications would need to be negotiated. Job descriptions were reviewed and
have been updated for accuracy on a regular basis.

For maximum effectiveness, the relationship between consultant and client must be a
cooperative effort. While Municipal Resources, Inc. assumes responsibility for all final
recommendations, client input has been sought, carefully weighed, and incorporated into the
report whenever possible.

Study Process
This project included the following steps:

° Organizational Meetings with the Town Manager and HR Generalist to discuss
the goals and objectives of the study.

. A thorough Job Analysis Process which involved reviewing position duties and
responsibilities (essential functions) utilizing job descriptions and information
gained from the Town.

REPORT: Town of Meredith, NH: Wage and Classification Study Page 2
Prepared by Municipal Resources, Inc.
May 2023

Page 34 of 121



. Development of a Classification Plan. Position assignfnent to grades based on a
system of objective evaluation.

. Thorough Salary/Benefit Market Analysis using comparable municipalities jointly
selected by Town Officials and MRI.

. Several discussions with the Town to review pay policies and draft work products
(i.e., comparative data and other related materials).

. Preparation of minimum estimated Implementation Costs.
. Provision of guidelines for maintaining the plan.
. Final preparation of Report to the Town with explanation of recommendations

and methodology.

The following documents have been prepared for the Town of Meredith, NH:

° Market Data Report (Appendix A)
° Proposed FY2023 Classification Plans (Appendix B)
. Proposed FY2023 Pay Plans (Appendix C)
. Benefits Summaries (Appendix D)
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Scope

The study included a review of 58 town positions (including Library and 4 Fire Call positions),
and market salary/benefit information from comparable communities. This provided an
analysis of the job duties of each position, as well as the current salary structure. Job
descriptions were reviewed for accuracy and compliance.

Classification and Compensation

Several discussions were conducted with town representatives and personnel throughout the
project. A thorough job analysis process of reviewing responsibilities of all positions was
conducted. Job descriptions were reviewed and already updated by the Town.

REPORT: Town of Meredith, NH: Wage and Classification Study Page 3
Prepared by Municipal Resources, Inc.
May 2023

Page 35 of 121



A thorough salary and benefit market analysis was conducted utilizing comparable
municipalities. The 11 municipalities analyzed for salary market were: Bow, Concord, Franklin,
Gilford, Hampstead, Hooksett, Laconia, Pembroke, Plaistow, Plymouth, and Wolfeboro. A
comparison was made of the average, 75" percentile, Median and minimum and maximum
salaries.

The job evaluation process establishes the relative value of jobs within an organization,
whereby positions are analyzed, measured, and compared against a common set of criteria in a
systematic and objective manner. While internal equity was evaluated for groupings of
positions, major focus was addressed on the market external equity of salary and benefits
based on current trends.

The Plan

The proposed Pay and Classification Plans for town positions were developed and updated to
provide the Town of Meredith with a solid structure to equitably group similar valued positions
within a grade. The grade structure for both the Non-Union Plan and DPW Union Pay Plan is
similar to the current ones, only updated for the market. The Pay Plan for Non-Union
personnel has 23 Grade Levels with 13 steps, and the one for the DPW Union has 14 Grade
Levels with 13 steps. There is 2.50 percent between each step. The increase range from
minimum to maximum is approximately 35 %. Comparative data was considered to set the
grade parameters, while the classification process controlled the internal assignment of
positions to compensation levels. The schedule shows the hourly pay rate as well and the
annual salary for employees. The pay scale is based on the market at the 75t percentile of the
communities surveyed, which means the Town will be paying employees in the top 25 percent
of that market, which is very positive.

A total of ten (11) nonunion classifications are recommended to be reclassified and one (2)
classification deleted along with recommendations for five (5) DPW union classifications to be
reclassified. The projected cost to place all employees on the new pay plan in the step closest
to their proposed pay rate is a total of $34,299 for non-union positions and $6,490 for DPW
union positions or a total of $40,789. Of course, any union changes would need to be
negotiated. The town may determine to add additional cost if it desires to consider perhaps
longevity, experience or other factors when placing all employees on the new pay scale either
now or in the future. The Plan also addresses some potential organizational changes by
including a new title in the plan and eliminating one title.

Maintenance/Update

Salary data should be reviewed at least every three years in order to remain competitive with
the Town’s salary structure.

REPORT: Town of Meredith, NH: Wage and Classification Study Page 4
Prepared by Municipal Resources, Inc.
May 2023

Page 36 of 121



Fire Call Positions

Pay for these positions was reviewed in the Market Data Report along with discussions with
departments included in the survey. Limited results are provided in the report, due to the
declining involvement of Call Positions in departments.

Benefits
A review of benefits indicates that the town currently does not have a very competitive
program and there are several areas that should be considered to enhance the current benefit

package, as when combined with wages it provides employees with a total compensation
package. Recommendations are provided in detail in the report.

PROJECT REPORT

Details of the Methodology

In Meredith, the evaluation of job descriptions, position classifications, and compensation
levels was undertaken for all employees included in the study. Town representatives were
contacted regarding information and working documents. Job descriptions were also reviewed
and analysis of the job descriptions along with information pertaining to positions was then
conducted.

Throughout this process, evaluation of 14 criteria factors was conducted, based solely on the
duties and responsibilities of the position. The evaluation has no relationship to the abilities,
performance, or longevity of the employee currently holding the job.

At the same time, salary, and benefit data from municipalities comparable to Meredith were
gathered and analyzed for as many positions as possible. Some of the factors reviewed in
determining appropriate comparable communities included items such as population, form of
government, size of budget, income per capita, location, etc. Salary and benefit data was
analyzed for the following 11 municipalities:

Bow Hooksett

Concord Laconia

Franklin Pembroke

Gilford Plaistow

Hampstead Plymouth

Wolfeboro

REPORT: Town of Meredith, NH: Wage and Classification Study Page 5
Prepared by Municipal Resources, Inc.

May 2023

Page 37 of 121



CLASSIFYING AND COMPENSATING POSITIONS

The Classification Plan

A classification plan is the foundation upon which a sound human resource management
program is established. The classification plan is the basis for developing and implementing
other human resource functions such as recruitment and selection, training, performance
appraisal, succession management, etc. Classification is the process of grouping individual
positions into broader groupings for personnel, budgeting, and other management purposes.
Classification sorts the work of individual positions based on type of work and then levels of
responsibility and difficuity. As such, it is not an exact science but rather a reasonable
arrangement of work efforts and activities. Beyond legal constraints, what is most reasonable is
that which works best for a particular organization.

It is important to consider the objectives of (1) Job Analysis and (2) Job Evaluation when
reviewing the proposed classification plan. Of critical importance in the process of reviewing
jobs are the inherent job factors and the particular skills or quality of work required of the
position. A thorough Job Analysis produces, in general, five kinds of basic information to aid in
this process:

1. Information about the nature of work (e.g., essential functions and
purpose/objective of the position)

2. The level of work (e.g., degree of complexity and accountability)

3. Job requirements (e.g., the knowledge, skills, abilities, and other special
requirements/characteristics needed to perform the job)

4. Job qualifications (e.g., minimum education, training, and experience needed to
gualify)
5. Working conditions (e.g., the psychological, emotional, and physical demands

placed on employees by the work environment)

Job Evaluation is a process that establishes the relative value of jobs within an organization.
There may be several reasons for carrying out this process. The main ones are: (1) to establish
the correct rank order or groupings of jobs, (2) to establish the relative distance between jobs
within the ranking, and (3) to provide an objective measurement of job size for comparison
with other jobs and enable salary comparisons to be made.

Job evaluation is the process whereby positions are analyzed, measured, and compared against
a common set of criteria in a systematic and objective manner. Job evaluation does not

REPORT: Town of Meredith, NH: Wage and Classification Study Page 6
Prepared by Municipal Resources, Inc.
May 2023

Page 38 of 121



produce a rate of pay. Rather, it produces a ranking of jobs in terms of “job content,” around
which a salary structure can be established. Similarly, the evaluation process does not measure
an individual’s performance. The evaluation looks at the job, not the job holder; it assumes that
the job is being performed to a fully acceptable standard and that all the identified
requirements of a job are being met.

Market Survey and Developing the Compensation Plan

Municipal Resources, Inc. conducted a thorough salary/benefits survey and market analysis to
determine the market competitiveness for positions included in this study. To measure the pay
rates among competitors for these positions, MRI distributed custom survey documents to
comparable municipalities, identified above. The summary and results of the survey is provided
in Appendix A.

All of the comparative data is FY-23 information and detailed on the survey charts. For each
position analyzed, data points were collected from the labor market. The data points indicate
the amount of salary information for each position surveyed. In some instances: (1) the
municipality did not have a comparable position; or (2) the consultants determined that the
position was not comparable to the position in Meredith. MRI used professional discretionary
judgment when comparing positions to comparable data. The consultants analyzed both the
market survey data and evaluation of criteria factors when placing the position on the
compensation/classification plan. While this market analysis and information provides the
Town with benchmark salary data to set the parameters for compensation decisions, the client
must also consider the “uniqueness” of certain positions in the organization, as well as the
Town'’s ability to pay. The following is the analysis definitions for the data collected and
presented in the charts.

> All comparative market data collected is FY-23 salary and wage information.

> Certain salary/wage data collected has been pro-rated to hourly for comparative
purposes only. Certain salary/wage data collected has been annualized for
comparative purposes only.

> For each position analyzed, data points are collected from the labor market. The
Data Points indicate the amount of salary information for each position
surveyed. In other words, the number of communities that reported data for a
particular position.

> In each cell, the top number indicates the minimum salary the community pays
and the bottom number indicates the maximum salary the community pays. If
only one salary is shown, that is the current salary paid.

REPORT: Town of Meredith, NH: Wage and Classification Study Page 7
Prepared by Municipal Resources, Inc.
May 2023

Page 39 of 121



> The Average is the sum of the survey readings divided by the number of the
municipalities reporting. The Average shows the average minimum salary among
the comparables over the average maximum salary/wage among the
comparables.

> The Range shows the lowest minimum salary among the comparable
communities and highest maximum salary among the comparables.

> In an array of survey readings, sorted from low to high, this is the reading that is
at the mid-point or middle of the data, indicating that 50% of survey participants
pay at or below this salary rate. The Median shows the midpoint of the minimum
salary among the comparable communities and the midpoint of the maximum
salary among the comparable communities.

> The 75th Percentile shows the 75t percentile of the current salary rate. The
percentile rank looks at the array of data points and gives each data point a
percentile rank, where the lowest data point is 0% and the highest data point is
100%. In an array of survey readings, sorted from low to high, this indicates that
75% of the surveyed market pays at or below this salary rate. Therefore, to
develop a system at this rate, positions would fall within the top 25% of the
market.

> In some instances: (1) the municipality did not have a comparable position; (2)

the consultants determined that the position was not comparable; or (3) the
information was not made available to the consultants.

Description of Pay and Classification Plans

Setting the rates of pay for jobs on the position hierarchy results in what is called a “pay
structure.” When reviewing or developing pay rates, a number of major policy decisions need
to be made. For example: How should the Town pay level relate to the market? For what does
the Town want to pay (i.e., job content, seniority, performance, cost of living, etc.)? How does
the Town currently pay its employees? The resulting compensation plan should reflect the
Town's pay policies, the market place, internal job values, and the financial ability of the Town
to pay at a given level. These are all questions that Meredith should consider when reviewing
the proposed structure.

The proposed Classification Plans are presented in Appendix B and the Proposed Pay Plans are
presented in Appendix C. Pay ranges were set for groups of positions which the consultants
determined should be paid equally. The Proposed Pay Plans are developed at the 75t
percentile of the market surveyed, which places positions in the top 25% of the market. Each
grade level includes a pay range from minimum to maximum of approximately 35% and

REPORT: Town of Meredith, NH: Wage and Classification Study Page 8
Prepared by Municipal Resources, Inc.
May 2023

Page 40 of 121



includes 13 steps with 2.50% between each step. Comparative data was considered to set the
grade parameters, while the classification process controlled the internal assighment of
positions to compensation levels. While internal equity was evaluated for groupings of
positions, major focus was addressed on the market external equity of salary and benefits
based on current trends.

Updated pay scales are proposed in order to be more competitive with the market. Of course, if
changes are desired in the DPW union positions as discussed in this report, they would need to
be negotiated.

Pay ranges are in place in order to provide town officials with flexibility for hiring and
placement levels based on education and experience and allows for flexibility for performance
achievements if desired. In general, the pay ranges on the proposed salary schedule were
developed utilizing the 75" percentile of market salaries. The actual placement within the
Classification Plan is based on a combination of market salary evaluation and blended with
criteria factors that were evaluated for each position.

This is a base salary plan and does not include compensation for longevity, special pay, benefits,
or other compensation. It is up to the Town to determine its ability to pay with regard to the
implementation of this proposed compensation plan. The Town has fallen behind with salary
levels for some positions. There are different types of implementation systems the Town could
utilize in order to have a phased-in approach, if necessary due to any budgetary issues. Some
options to consider include implementing changes beginning at six months into the adopted
budget, thus only incurring the cost the first year for a six-month period. Of course, the
following year, a full year of salaries would need to be budgeted. Another option is to phase in
the changes immediately and budget a percentage that could be feasible, such as 50% the first
year and 50% the second year. This study did not take into consideration performance,
longevity, or special abilities/talents of employees. Therefore, Town officials may determine
that it is necessary to make further adjustments when placing employees within the proposed
pay ranges. This would alleviate possible compression issues that may be a result of long-time
employees having salaries at similar levels as new employees in the same classification.

BENEFITS

A survey was conducted of some pay-related insurances/benefits/policies, to determine how
comparable the Town is with other municipalities. In order to determine the total
compensation package, both salaries and benefits are typically considered. This is significantly
important for recruitment purposes to attract qualified applicants and then retain them.
Benefits were surveyed for both nonunion and union positions, and summaries of both are
provided in Appendix D. A review of benefits indicates that the town currently does not have a
very competitive program and there are several areas that should be considered to enhance
the current benefit package. While some benefits surveyed were comparable there were some

REPORT: Town of Meredith, NH: Wage and Classification Study Page 9
Prepared by Municipal Resources, Inc.
May 2023

Page 41 of 121



significant ones that are not such as health insurance, which is an important one. The town
should consider improvements in several benefits that are discussed in the Recommendations.

IMPLEMENTATION AND OTHER RECOMMENDATIONS

The following sections are intended to assist and guide the Town of Meredith in implementing
the proposed pay and classification plans. Successful implementation will require a concerted
effort by Town Officials and employees to make equitable judgments in a consistent and
objective manner.

Initial Placements for Current Employees

The placement of two or more positions on a certain grade represents a judgment that those
positions should be compensated comparably within the range and steps provided. The range is
similar to a scale providing Meredith with the opportunity to make distinctions between
employees (not positions) based upon established criteria applied consistently. These criteria
might include special abilities, experience, longevity, and/or any other factors determined by
the Town. Longevity may be a fair way of placement initially. The study has recommended
placing all employees on the step closest to the proposed pay rate that does not warrant any
reduction in pay.

Salaries Below Pay Range

If the salary of an employee is below the minimum, step 1, of the proposed grade at the time of
implementation, every effort should be made to bring it into the range. At the time of this
study, MRI has found five nonunion employees and two DPW union employees that are below
the minimum within the grades proposed. The Town should move forth to establishing a plan
to bring these positions to the minimum grade level proposed in order to properly compensate
these employees. The cost for this is a total of $5,969 for nonunion employees and $374 for
DPW union employees.

Total Implementation Cost

The total estimated implementation cost recommended, which includes placing all employees
on the proposed pay scales on the step closest to the new pay rate without any reduction in
pay, is estimated to cost 540,789 annually (nonunion $34,299: union $6490). If the Town
desires to additionally place all employees within the new pay ranges and add additional
compensation to address longevity, or other factors, it would need to compute the additional
cost.

REPORT: Town of Meredith, NH: Wage and Classification Study Page 10
Prepared by Municipal Resources, Inc.
May 2023

Page 42 of 121



Salaries Above Pay Range

To maintain morale and a sense of fairness, MRI recommends Meredith not reduce the
compensation level of any current employee. If an employee’s current salary falls above the
upper limit of the recommended grade range, the town should maintain the employee’s salary
above the maximum for the grade until the employee retires or separates from the town. This
is called “red-lining” a position. New employees can be hired at the appropriate lower pay. MRI
did not find any employees in this category at this time. There may be other reasons specific
employees fall above the pay range, such as having additional responsibilities they were
compensated for, or possessing unique additional qualifications the town believes is necessary.
The Pay and Classification Plans should serve as a guide to determine pay rates, and the Town
Manager has the flexibility of placing employees on the pay scale or beyond the maximum pay
rate based on variable market conditions or other pertinent considerations. However, most
communities will not grant an increase to an employee’s base salary once he or she has
reached the maximum level of the salary range, only a COLA adjustment unless there are
special circumstances. Meredith should also continue to grant cost-of-living increases to those
employees who have reached maximum level within the grade range. At the time of this study
no employees were found to be higher than the maximum pay rate in the proposed schedule.

Salary Compression

Salary compression is an internal problem initiated by external market conditions and
exacerbated by other factors. It can occur when (1) there are differences in pay between
employees with differing skill sets and/or experience levels; (2) current employee pay raises
don’t keep up with increases in the market; (3) new hires are hired in levels similar to
employees with several years’ in the Town; or (4) in order to meet the supply and demand of
some positions, individuals may be hired at a higher rate of pay than current employees. Any
or all of these factors can be a part of the reason compression may be experienced in the future
in the Town. At this time, it does not appear that this has happened in the town. Turnover and
low morale are two major results that may occur due to salary compression, and the town is
encouraged to keep this in mind in the future and not take any actions that could create a
compression issue.

Vacancies
When a vacancy develops, it is a good time to automatically review the position. This may
involve a job analysis and updating the job description and reviewing the market for the

particular position.

Update and Maintain the Pay and Classification Plans

The Town should maintain and update the pay and classification plans. This would include the
following tasks:

REPORT: Town of Meredith, NH: Wage and Classification Study Page 11
Prepared by Municipal Resources, Inc.
May 2023

Page 43 of 121



. Conduct regular position reviews to assure positions have current functional job
descriptions that are based on job content.

. Conduct job analysis of new positions to assure these positions are properly
assigned to a grade.

° Review positions to ensure internal equity in relationship to other Town
classifications.

° Conduct periodic salary surveys (every three years) to ensure market
competitiveness.

Reclassifications

The proposed Classification and Pay Plans continue to have the same structure of grade levels
in order to be consistent and provide an easy understanding of the new plan. However, as a
result of evaluating all position duties and requirements for internal equity and salary in the
external market the following grade reclassifications are recommended:

Non-Union Position Title Current Grade Proposed New Grade
Police Administrative Assistant 7 10
Children’s Librarian 8 10
Real Estate Appraiser 8 10
Technical Services Librarian 8 10
Circulation Librarian 8 10
Parks & Recreation Operations Crew Chief 9 11
Town Planner 14 18
Library Director 16 18
Public Works Assistant Director 17 18
Police Chief 21 23

DPW Union Position Title

Office Clerk 4 5
Water & Sewer Operator 5 6
Building & Grounds Crew Chief 6 8
Water & Sewer Crew Chief 8 9
Mechanic Crew Chief 10 11

Fire Department and Community Development Department

Fire Department

REPORT: Town of Meredith, NH: Wage and Classification Study Page 12
Prepared by Municipal Resources, Inc.
May 2023

Page 44 of 121



In addition to the full time Fire Chief position, the Fire Call positions of Fire
Lieutenant/Engineer, Fire Captain/Chief Engineer and Fire Deputy Chief were included in the
salary survey and the results of pay rates can be reviewed in the Market Data Report. The
Town of Meredith currently has specific pay rates for Call Positions based on different
certification levels in a step system with eight steps. Upon discussion with the departments
surveyed that still have Call Positions, it was learned that there are very limited numbers of Call
Personnel and in some cases, are in name only left on the rosters. Also, payment listed in many
cases is based on long-time personnel rates. Consequently, there was not sufficient data to
make any recommendations regarding modifications to the current system utilized.

Currently the town is having an assessment conducted of the Fire Department and should be
receiving some recommendations in the near future. It is unknown at this time if
recommendations could impact the current and/or future structure of the department, no pay
recommendations have been made for the Call Personnel or the full-time Fire Chief position at
this time, as based on the current market data, the Fire Chief position is in the appropriate
grade level. If the organization changes in the future, this position may warrant being
reevaluated at that time.

Community Development Department

Due to the recent retirement of the Community Development Director, the Town has been in
the process of evaluating the structure of this function. At the time of this study, the Town will
be eliminating the position of Community Development Director and it therefore has not been
included in the Classification Plan. A new position title, Assistant Planner, has been added to
the Classification Plan at Grade Level 12 which will provide assistance to the Town Planner
position. Initially the Town Manager will oversee the operation of this department.

Implementation of Pay Plan

Our study results indicate that for the Town of Meredith to maintain a competitive edge with
the market and retain qualified employees, the proposed pay plan should be implemented and
provides growth for most employees at the proposed grade levels. MRI received sufficient data
for this analysis and the findings are valid. It is recommended that the updated system be
implemented as soon as possible. The system provides consistency for all employees and
provides a fair and equitable system for the Town to implement.

Implementation of Classification Plan

The Town should implement MRI’s proposed Classification Plans in order to have a valid,
structured system that complements the salary schedule. The attached classification plans
include position titles and should be implemented in accordance with the Town'’s funding
implementation.

REPORT: Town of Meredith, NH: Wage and Classification Study Page 13
Prepared by Municipal Resources, Inc.
May 2023

Page 45 of 121



Cost-of-Living (COLA)

If a cost-of-living percentage increase is granted annually, in the future it should be applied to
the entire salary schedule and updated. This raises the compensation rates for the entire
compensation schedule equal to changes to the cost of living. This COLA can be determined by
the CPI (Consumer Price Index) or what surrounding communities are implementing for an
annual cost of living.

Benefits

The benefits reviewed indicate that while the Town provides some comparable benefits to
other communities surveyed, some of the primary benefits are lacking and not competitive for
recruitment and retention when viewing the Total Compensation package of salary and
benefits. The summary included in Appendix D lists data from communities surveyed.

As a result of the analysis of the data, it is recommended that the town consider enhancing the
following benefits, which will be an improvement to the Total Compensation Package.

> Health Insurance — move to increase the Employer Contribution rate to 85-90% (this
could be phased in over a time period. Additionally, the opt out incentive if an
employee has other health insurance should increase to a percentage of 25-45% of the
cost of the plan.

» Personal Days — consideration should be given to adding two personal days each year.

» Vacation Days — consideration should be given to increasing the number of vacation
days each year from 11 years of service and up. They should incrementally be increased
to 25 days with service of 25 years or more.

» Short and Long- Term Disability Insurance — These both should be added with the
Employer Share of cost at 100%.

» Dental Insurance — An increase of the employer contribution share to 90%.

» Longevity Program — This program should be reviewed to be increased incrementally at
5- year increments.

> Life Insurance — currently the town only provides $20,000 in life insurance for each
employee and funds it 100%. The amount of insurance provided should be one times
the annual salary of the employee with a maximum amount of $100,000, paid for by the
Employer.

REPORT: Town of Meredith, NH: Wage and Classification Study Page 14
Prepared by Municipal Resources, Inc.
May 2023

Page 46 of 121



Itis recommended that the Town further evaluate the costs of each of the benefits. Some are
fairly low cost while others may cost some, such as health insurance, but will greatly aid with
the recruitment and retention of talented employees. The Town should utilize these
recommendations as a roadmap for improvements.

CONCLUSION

The Town of Meredith’s compensation and benefit programs have fallen somewhat behind the
municipal labor market. The current market trend and difficulty of recruitment and retention of
qualified employees are factors the Town must consider. It is imperative for the Town to adopt
a more relevant Pay and Classification Plan as well as an improved Benefits package to provide
a positive Total Compensation Package for all positions.

MRI received sufficient data for this analysis and is confident in the market results.

Market surveys should be conducted every three years. The proposed pay and classification
plans should be viewed as only one step in the development compensation program. The
methodology will be of assistance in furnishing improved tools and guidance to management
personnel. Ensuring that job descriptions, salary, and classification plans are regularly reviewed
and have valid methodologies will ultimately improve the management of compensation for all
positions.

Since both the Town of Meredith and the labor market are active and subject to constant
change, it should not be expected that this plan will provide solutions to all salary problem:s,
nor will it eliminate the need for mature judgment in the administration of salaries. [t does,
however, provide a framework within which most salary matters can be handled.

Municipal Resources, Inc. has provided the Town of Meredith with the methodology and
guidelines to maintain the pay and classification plans. Used together, job evaluation and salary
and benefit surveys equip Meredith with the information needed to maintain a sound and
consistent pay structure. Thus, the employees are assured of being compensated on an
equitable basis compared with their internal colleagues in the organization and are assured that
their compensation is on par with external competitors too. While both job evaluation and
salary surveys attempt to achieve consistency in the wage structure, they use different criteria
to evaluate consistency (i.e., internal vs. external comparison).

Please review the attached key documents to this report.

REPORT: Town of Meredith, NH: Wage and Classification Study Page 15
Prepared by Municipal Resources, Inc.
May 2023

Page 47 of 121



DISCLAIMER

Although every effort has been made to ensure the accuracy and completeness of this report,
Municipal Resources, Inc. cannot be responsible for any errors in the positions, salaries, and
wages of other organizations; positions and salaries are always changing. Nor can we be
responsible for the changes in any laws or regulations that may affect the positions studied.

REPORT: Town of Meredith, NH: Wage and Classification Study
Prepared by Municipal Resources, Inc.
May 2023

Page 16

Page 48 of 121



APPENDIX A

Municipal
Resources, Inc.

Page 49 of 121



TZT J0 05 abed

MEREDITH, NH FY23 MARKET DATA REPORT

o [0)) [e]
£ = | 3| £ | ¢ g s | e[ e | 8| 5| 2
o Position Title o S g = e 3 £ 2 S @ g Ko
2 8 £ o 5 2 g 5 & £ S
3 |iine T - =
10 | 1 [Administrative Assistant 25.86 20.53 21.58 17.55 21.87 21.37 19.16 19.00 18.76
33.95 25.02 31.25 23.04 30.62 32.91 27.79 25.00 26.80
20 | 2 JAssessor 42.38 | outsourced 45.40 outsourced 33.35 | outsourced outsourced | outsourced | outsourced
55.64 64.13 46.69
4 | 3 JAssistant Librarian 19.62 17.25 24.09
25.80 27.93 36.15
12 | 4 )Assistant Library Director 28.57 37.26 23.75 29.95 18.08 23.09
37.47 53.96 38.45 44,95 26.27 26.84 32.33 24.37
8 | 5 [Children's Librarian 23.44 23.45 33.73 16.07 22.00 24.09 17.06 18.68
30.78 23.45 48.88 21.08 35.62 36.15 24.74 18.08 26.15 23.29
16 | 6 JCode Enforcement / Health Officer 28.57 32.04 33.73 24.92 29.75 31.63 30.25 | see Comm 24.55 24.00 | stipend
37.47 39.02 48.88 32.69 48.17 47.47 42.35 Dev Dir 36.06 35.00 $4,000 21.75
20 | 7 JCommunity Development Director 42.38 37.15 61.04 40.00 38.98 36.08
55.64 45.26 80.10 64.76 49.32 50.48
12 | 8 |Deputy Tax Collector / Asst. Town Clerk 25.86 30.60 16.77 22.00 20.45 stipend 17.96 19.50 20.69
33.95 44.29 22.00 35.62 30.70 $2,000 23.15 23.98 29.54
10 | 9 |Deputy Town Clerk / Asst. Tax Collector 25.86 21.58 33.73 20.45 13.08 17.96 18.08 17.00
33.95 26.29 48.88 30.70 25.74 23.15 26.27 20.91 18.76
Director of Administrative Services (Finance
23 | 10 |Director/Purchasing/IT) 49.18 41.00 41.13 41.39 40.00 29.95 38.96 40.56 29.37 34.02
64.54 49.96 59.56 54.31 64.76 44.95 54.55 51.00 43.00 47.62 62.33
7 | 11 |Dispatcher/Clerk 22.30 20.12 18.17 23.00 20.51 22.93 20.17 17.33
29.27 31.36 23.82 35.87 30.68 25.95 28.24 26.19
10 | 12 |Finance Clerk / General Assistance Officer 25.86 19.55 18.60 22.00 19.83 20.32
33.95 28.32 24.40 35.62 27.77 29.55 20.00
20 | 13 [Fire Chief 42.38 43.08 50.12 41.39 43.00 37.25 42.85 40.56 34.98 41.28
55.64 52.49 69.07 54.31 69.62 55.90 60.02 51.00 50.72 45.67 57.80 49.41
11 | 14 |GIS Specialist 27.16 29.03 2411
35.67 48.88 30.83
11 | 15 |HR Generalist 27.16 27.67 30.25 23.48
35.67 40.14 42.35 33.21 24.04 38.46
11 | 16 |IT Specialist 27.16 | outsourced 21.65 27.13 outsourced
35.67 31.36 38.38 25.48
2 | 17 |Library Aide 17.42 18.00 15.29 14.75 15.58 16.95 12.75 17.29 13.00
22.87 21.70 25.67 19.37 23.39 21.17 20.76 24.21 20.94
16 | 18 JLibrary Director 34.82 40.74 45.40 26.45 34.00 35.27 36.02 24.55 28.29
45.65 40.74 64.13 32.69 55.05 52.94 44.98 36.06 38.85 39.61 45.71
4 | 19 [Office Clerk 19.62 18.63 16.07 17.25 18.34 19.83 18.05 18.08 16.01
25.80 28.32 21.08 27.93 29.07 27.77 23.63 26.27 22.42
Parks and Recreation Operations Laborer
(Maintrnce of community center, buildings,
20 |grounds & parks) 18.30 13.56 12.00 20.69
24.02 17.79 19.43 Municip#l Res@%&ek Jing.




TZT 0O TG abed

MEREDITH, NH FY23 MARKET DATA REPORT

2 < ko] c g = © g =z £ o4
3 £ . 2 £ T 2 o € o g 3 3
g Position Title o 3 e = S 2 g S 5 2 5 8
g ) ] 3 [} £ ] © E o > 5
g1]. = O [T © T | d‘_) o o =
3 |tine T
9 Parks & Recreation Operations Crew Chief 24 .62 27.62 29.03 24.66 26.45
32.31 33.66 42.02 34.85 37.02
10 | 21 [Parks and Recreation Program Director 25.86 20.53 41.13 20.75 20.25 24.71 19.70
33.95 25.02 59.56 33.60 24.90 34.59 28.14
18 | 22 |Parks & Recreation Director 38.41 30.49 45.40 27.99 29.75 28.29
50.42 37.15 64.13 36.71 52.62 39.61 32.64
7 | 23 |Police Administrative Assistant 22.30 20.53 21.58 17.55 22.00 27.43 23.92 20.17
29.27 25.02 31.25 23.04 35.62 38.40 31.47 25.75 28.24 23.63
21 | 24 |Police Chief 44.54 43.08 50.12 41.39 43.00 37.25 42.85 37.08 47.89
58.46 52.49 69.07 54.31 69.62 55.90 60.02 73.27 53.76 50.48 67.05 54.10
13 | 25 |Police Corporal 30.00 24.87
39.38 37.58
18 | 26 |Police Lieutenant 38.41 37.15 39.88 32.82 32.50 33.35 47.00 31.45
50.42 45.26 54.08 43.06 52.62 46.69 51.36 44.52 41.88
11 | 27 [Police Officer 27.16 26.29 28.51 23.78 26.00 27.02 25.42 24.82 24.55 26.32 23.09 22.14
35.67 32.04 43.74 31.20 40.55 33.61 33.85 33.77 36.06 34.64 32.33 33.45
14 | 28 |Police Sergeant 30.03 32.04 34.49 26.45 29.75 38.62 21.45 38.62 27.70 36.37 28.29 25.88
41.34 39.02 48.54 34.71 48.17 39.22 38.09 44.76 40.18 41.30 39.61 39.10
17 | 29 |Public Works Assistant Director 36.57 32.04 45.40 27.99 29.75 31.80 32.09
47.97 39.02 64.13 36.71 53.62 44.16 44 .94
22 | 30 |Public Works Director 46.80 43.08 50.12 41.39 40.00 37.25 42.85 40.56 34.98
61.43 52.49 69.07 54.31 64.76 55.90 60.02 51.00 50.72 45.67
8 | 31 |Real Estate Appraiser 23.44 25.04 22.00 20.34
30.78 36.25 35.62 28.74
11 | 32 |Staff Accountant 27.16 25.02 26.35 21.69 20.75 25.87 24.55
35.67 30.49 38.20 28.46 33.60 36.53 36.06
8 | 33 [Technical Services Librarian 23.44 33.73 28.36 22.10
30.78 48.88 42.57 27.60
12 | 34 |Town Clerk 32.44 30.49 45.40 16.07 38.53 29.95 stipend 25.87 24,55 26.45
32.44 37.15 64.13 21.08 38.53 44.95 $5,000 36.53 36.06 24.52 37.02 37.16
14 | 35 JTown Planner 30.03 41.13 41.39 23.04 24.55 | outsourced
41.37 59.56 54.31 45.33 36.06 40.60
18 | 36 |Water & Sewer Superintendent 38.41 | outsourced 41.13 20.49 31.45
50.42 59.56 26.89 44.52 38.74

Municipal Resources, Inc.




MEREDITH, NH FY23 MARKET DATA REPORT

TZT J0 ¢S abed

2 S o c ® = © 2 2 £ 2
b o 5 3 S < o = 3 < o 2 = 8
9 Position Title o 2 c < = a S 5] £ @ £ Q2
5 2 3 s & g 2 S 5 s z 2
3 |iine T &
PUBLIC WORKS UNION
u10] 37 |Administrative Assistant 25.86 20.53 20.57 17.55 17.94 18.92 24.04 18.76
33.95 25.02 29.73 23.04 28.17 24.33 26.50 26.80
Us | 38 JBuildings & Grounds - Crew Chief 21.22 22.66 26.29 20.49 20.45 26.58 20.17 21.73
27.87 27.62 38.08 26.89 30.70 33.90 32.59 28.24 31.03
us | 39 |[Cemetery Sexton 21.22 29.03 stipend stipend stipend
41.37 42.02 $5,000 $7,200 $7,000
u14| 40 |DPW/Highway Operations Manager 30.03 41.13 20.49 26.86 27.91 20.32 24.71 25.15
32.31 59.56 26.89 40.31 35.56 29.55 36.00 34.59 35.92
U9 | 41 |Drainage Crew Chief 24.62 25.04
32.31 42.02
U9 | 42 |Heavy Equipment Mechanic 24.62 22.66 23.65 17.28 23.36 22.98 19.16 20.17 19.70
24.02 27.62 34.25 22.67 37.82 27.34 27.79 28.24 28.14
U3 | 43 |Laborer 18.30 20.53 17.60 19.42 18.34 14.99 17.47 13.77 21.50 14.82 17.01
26.50 25.02 25.46 31.44 27.53 23.55 21.07 19.54 26.44 20.75 24.29
us | 44 |Maintenance Il (3 years experience, CDL-B) 20.21 19.38 14.61 16.10 20.17
27.87 28.08 19.16 23.35 28.24
Maintenance III (skilled work, 4 years
experience, CDL-B,
U6 | 45 lwintermaintenance/backhoe) 21.22 20.38 16.54
33.95 29.53 21.69
Maintenance IV (skilled work, 6 years
experience, CDL-B, road grader/heavy
uto| 46 equipment) 25.86 21.40 17.28
25.80 31.03 22.67
u10| 47 [Mechanic Crew Chief 25.86 29.03 26.35 20.49 28.25 23.02 26.58 23.95
41.37 35.36 38.20 26.89 43.35 36.13 33.90 34.21
U4 | 48 |Office Clerk 19.62 20.57 16.07 17.25 16.01
24.02 29.73 21.08 27.93 22.41
u14] 49 [Public Works Operations Manager 30.03 33.73 20.49
32.31 48.88 26.89
u3 | 50 |Solid Waste Attendant 18.30 outsourced 16.54 19.42 15.58 14.99 17.11 16.01
26.50 21.69 31.44 23.39 23.55 2211 22.42 17.00
ug | 51 |Solid Waste Coordinator 24.62 20.49 23.75 17.89
32.31 26.89 38.45 25.54
us | 52 |Water & Sewer Operator 20.21 23.66 16.54 17.89
26.50 34.25 21.69 25.54
us | 53 |[Water and Sewer Crew Chief 23.44 23.81 20.49 23.36 19.70
30.78 34.29 26.89 37.82 28.14

Municipal Resources, Inc.



TZT JO €6 abed

MEREDITH, NH FY23 MARKET DATA REPORT

) I = o < 2
: £ . 2 < P 3 3 2 E s 3 3
e Position Title o e 2 = pe a < 8 S j £ o
g 9] m 3 o o) £ o @ £ o > o
2 = O w © T — & o o =
3 |line T
CALL FIRE Yes No Yes Some Yes Yes No Yes Some Some
F1 | 54 |Firefighter 11.41 20.53 18.60 16.00 20.45 17.13 12.72
17.14 25.02 24.40 25.91 30.70 23.98 18.50 varies 25.00
F2 | 55 |Fire Lieutenant/Engineer 17.14 24.09 17.98
19.65 36.15 25.18 21.00
F3 | 56 |Fire Captain/Chief Engineer 19.66 22.82 25.44 18.89
22.18 29.95 38.17 26.45 22.00
F4 | 57 |Fire Deputy Chief 21.54 22.66 32.82 26.86
24.10 27.62 43.06 40.31

Municipal Resources, Inc.



12T 10 G abed

MEREDITH, NH FY23 MARKET DATA REPORT

3 £
g T
9 Position Title o Comp 75th %
é § Data | percentile of | Comp Lo-Hi Comp Comp Higher/Lower
3 line Points Market Range Median Average |than Comp Ave
10 | 1 |Administrative Assistant 25.86 8 21.42 17.55 19.85 19.98 22.7%
33.95 8 30.78 32.91 27.30 27.80 18.1%
20 | 2 |Assessor 42.38 2 42.39 33.35 39.38 39.38 71%
55.64 2 59.77 64.13 55.41 55.41 0.4%
4 | 3 |Assistant Librarian 19.62 2 22.38 17.25 20.67 20.67 -5.4%
25.80 2 34.10 36.15 32.04 32.04 -24.2%
12 | 4 |Assistant Library Director 28.57 5 29.95 18.08 23.75 26.43 7.5%
37.47 7 41.70 53.96 32.33 35.31 5.8%
8 | 5 |Children's Librarian 23.44 7 23.77 16.07 22.00 22.15 5.5%
30.78 9 35.62 48.88 24.74 28.60 7.1%
16 | 6 |Code Enforcement / Health Officer 2857 8 31.73 24.00 30.00 28.86 -1.0%
37.47 9 47.47 48.88 39.02 39.04 -4.2%
20 | 7 |Community Development Director 42.38 5 40.00 36.08 38.98 42.65 -0.6%
55.64 5 64.76 80.10 50.48 57.98 -4.2%
12 | 8 |Deputy Tax Collector / Asst. Town Clerk 25.86 7 21.35 16.77 20.45 21.14 18.3%
33.95 7 33.16 44.29 29.54 29.90 11.9%
10 | 9 |Deputy Town Clerk / Asst. Tax Collector 25.86 7 21.02 13.08 18.08 20.27 21.6%
33.95 8 27.39 48.88 26.01 27.59 18.7%
Director of Administrative Services (Finance
23 | 10 |Director/Purchasing/IT) 49.18 9 41.00 29.37 40.00 37.38 24.0%
64.54 10 58.31 64.76 52.66 53.20 17.6%
7 | 11 |Dispatcher/Clerk 22.30 7 21.72 17.33 20.17 20.32 8.9%
29.27 7 31.02 35.87 28.24 28.87 1.4%
10 | 12 |Finance Clerk / General Assistance Officer 25.86 5 20.32 18.60 19.83 20.06 22.4%
33.95 6 29.24 35.62 28.05 27.61 18.7%
20 | 13 |Fire Chief 42.38 9 43.00 34.98 41.39 41.61 1.8%
55.64 11 58.91 69.62 54.31 56.00 -0.6%
11 | 14 |GIS Specialist 27.16 2 27.80 2411 26.57 26.57 2.2%
35.67 2 44.37 48.88 39.86 39.86 -11.7%
11 | 15 |HR Generalist 27.16 3 28.96 23.48 27.67 2713 0.1%
35.67 5 40.14 42.35 38.46 35.64 0.1%
11 | 16 |IT Specialist 27.16 2 25.76 21.65 24.39 24.39 10.2%
35.67 3 34.87 38.38 31.36 31.74 11.0%
2 | 17 |Library Aide 17.42 8 17.04 12.75 15.44 15.45 11.3%
22.87 8 23.60 25.67 21.44 2215 3.1%
16 | 18 |Library Director 34.82 8 37.20 24.55 34.64 33.84 2.8%
45.65 10 51.13 64.13 42.86 45.08 1.3%
4 | 19 |Office Clerk 19.62 8 18.41 16.01 18.07 17.78 9.4%
25.80 8 28.03 29.07 27.02 25.81 0.0%
Parks and Recreation Operations Laborer
(Maintrnce of community center, buildings,
20 |grounds & parks) 18.30 3 17.13 12.00 13.56 15.42 15.8%
24.02 3 24.49 29.54 19.43 22.25 7.4%

Municipal Resources, Inc.



TZT J0 GG abed

MEREDITH, NH FY23 MARKET DATA REPORT

3 £
@ 5
o Position Title o Comp 75th %
iv: g Data | percentile of | Comp Lo-Hi Comp Comp Higher/Lower
3 line Points Market Range Median Average [than Comp Ave
9 Parks & Recreation Operations Crew Chief 24.62 4 27.97 24.66 27.04 26.94 -9.4%
32.31 4 38.27 42.02 35.94 36.89 -14.2%
10 | 21 |Parks and Recreation Program Director 25.86 6 23.72 19.70 20.64 24.51 5.2%
33.95 6 34.34 59.56 30.87 34.30 -1.0%
18 | 22 |Parks & Recreation Director 38.41 5 30.49 27.99 29.75 32.38 15.7%
50.42 6 49.37 64.13 38.38 43.81 13.1%
7 | 23 |Police Administrative Assistant 22.30 7 22.96 17.55 21.58 21.88 1.9%
29.27 9 31.47 38.40 28.24 29.16 0.4%
21 | 24 |Palice Chief 44.54 8 44.28 37.08 42.93 42.83 3.8%
58.46 1 68.06 73.27 55.90 60.01 -2.6%
13 | 25 |Police Corporal 30.00 1 24.87 24.87 24.87 24.87 17.1%
39.38 1 37.58 37.58 37.58 37.58 4.6%
18 | 26 |Poalice Lieutenant 38.41 7 38.52 31.45 33.35 36.31 5.5%
50.42 8 51.68 54.08 45.98 47.43 5.9%
11 | 27 |Police Officer 27.16 1 26.31 22.14 2542 25.27 7.0%
35.67 1" 35.35 43.74 33.77 35.02 1.8%
14 | 28 Police Sergeant 30.03 11 35.43 21.45 29.75 30.88 -2.8%
41.34 11 43.03 48.54 39.61 41.15 0.4%
17 | 29 |Public Works Assistant Director 36.57 6 32.08 27.99 31.92 33.18 9.3%
47.97 6 51.45 64.13 44.55 47.10 1.8%
22 | 30 |Public Works Director 46.80 8 42.91 34.98 40.98 41.28 11.8%
61.43 9 60.02 69.07 54.31 55.99 8.8%
8 | 31 |Real Estate Appraiser 23.44 3 23.52 20.34 22.00 22.46 4.2%
30.78 3 35.94 36.25 35.62 33.54 -9.0%
11 | 32 |Staff Accountant 27.16 6 25.66 20.75 24.79 24.04 11.5%
35.67 6 36.41 38.20 34.83 3<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>